## **Table of Contents**

ATTACHMENTS	<u> 35</u>
ATTACHMENT A – CONTRACT	
ATTACHMENT B – BID/PROPOSAL AFFIDAVIT	46
ATTACHMENT C - COMAR 21.07.01.25 CONTRACT AFFIDAVIT	52
ATTACHMENT D – MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION	53
ATTACHMENT E – PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE RESPONSE FORM	64
ATTACHMENT F – PRICE PROPOSAL FORM INSTRUCTIONS	65
ATTACHMENT G – STATE IT SECURITY POLICY AND STANDARDS	68
ATTACHMENT H – BID BOND	69
ATTACHMENT I – PERFORMANCE BOND	
ATTACHMENT J - CALLING CARD REQUEST/CANCELLATION FORM	72
ATTACHMENT K - CALLING CARD RECEIPT AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FOR	

# ATTACHMENTS

In accordance with State Procurement Regulations:

**ATTACHMENT A** is the State's contract. It is provided with the RFP for informational purposes and is not required at proposal submission time. However, it must be completed, signed and returned by the selected Offeror to the Procurement Officer expeditiously upon notification of proposed contract award.

**ATTACHMENT B** – Bid/Proposal Affidavit. This form must be completed and submitted with the Offeror's technical proposal.

**ATTACHMENT C** – Contract Affidavit. IT is not required at proposals submission time. It must be submitted by the selected Offeror to the Procurement Officer within 5 working days of notification of proposed award.

**ATTACHMENT D-1, D-2, D-3 and D-4** – MBE Participation Forms. These forms must be submitted with the Offeror's technical proposal.

**ATTACHMENT** E – Pre-Proposal Conference Response Form. It is requested that this form be completed and submitted as described in RFP section 1.8 by those potential Offerors who plan on attending the conference.

**ATTACHMENT F** – Price Proposal Instructions and Forms. Price Proposal forms must be completed and submitted as the Financial Proposal.

**ATTACHMENT G** – State IT Security Policy and Standards.

ATTACHMENT H – Bid Bond.

ATTACHMENT I – Performance Bond.

ATTACHMET – J – Calling Card Request/Cancellation Form

ATTACHMENT K – Calling Card Receipt and Acknowledgement Form

## ATTACHMENT A – CONTRACT

## LONG DISTANCE CALLING SERVICES CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT is made this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2004 by and between \_\_\_\_\_\_ and the STATE OF MARYLAND, acting through the DEPARTMENT OF BUDGET AND MANAGEMENT, OFFICE OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY.

In consideration of the promises and the covenants herein contained, the parties agree as follows:

#### 1. Definitions

In this Contract, the following words have the meanings indicated:

- 1.1 "Contractor" means \_\_\_\_\_\_ whose principal business address is \_\_\_\_\_\_ and whose principal office in Maryland is \_\_\_\_\_\_.
- 1.2 "Department" means the Maryland Department of Budget and Management.
- 1.3 "Financial Proposal" means the Contractor's Financial Proposal dated \_\_\_\_\_\_.
- 1.4 "Procurement Officer" means Edward Bannat of the Department.
- 1.5 "Contract Manager" means Sandy Smith of the Department.
- 1.6 "RFP" means the Request for Proposals for Long Distance Calling Services, Project # 050R5800079.
- 1.7 "State" means the State of Maryland.
- 1.8 "Technical Proposal" means the Contractor's Technical Proposal, dated September 28, 2004.

#### 2. Scope of Work

2.1 The Contractor shall provide the services, equipment and related software described in the RFP. These services shall be provided in accordance with this Contract and the following exhibits, which are attached and incorporated herein by reference. If there is any conflict between this Contract and the Exhibits, the terms of the Contract shall govern. If there is any conflict among the Exhibits, the following order of precedence shall determine the prevailing provision:

Exhibit A – Request for Proposals –Project No. \_\_\_\_\_ Exhibit B – Contractor's Technical Proposal, dated \_\_\_\_\_ Exhibit C - Contractor's Financial Proposal, dated \_\_\_\_\_ Exhibit D – State Contract Affidavit, executed by the Contractor and dated \_\_\_\_\_

2.2 The Procurement Officer may, at any time, by written order, make changes in the work within the general scope of the Contract. No other order, statement or conduct of the Procurement Officer or any other person shall be treated as a change or entitle the Contractor to an equitable adjustment under this section. Except as otherwise provided in this Contract, if any change under this section causes an increase or decrease in the Contractor's cost

of, or the time required for, the performance of any part of the work, whether or not changed by the order, an equitable adjustment in the Contract price shall be made and the Contract modified in writing accordingly. The Contractor must assert in writing its right to an adjustment under this section within thirty (30) days of receipt of written change order and shall include a written statement setting forth the nature and cost of such claim. No claim by the Contractor shall be allowed if asserted after final payment under this Contract. Failure to agree to an adjustment under this section shall be a dispute under the Disputes clause. Nothing in this section shall excuse the Contractor from proceeding with the Contract as changed.

## **3.** Time for Performance

Unless terminated earlier as provided in this Contract, the Contractor shall provide services, equipment and software in accordance with the RFP. The term of this Contract is for a period of three (3) years, commencing on January 1, 2005 and terminating on December 31, 2007. The State, at its sole option, shall have the unilateral right to extend the contract for up to two (2) additional one-year terms. The Contractor shall provide services upon receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Manager.

## 4. Considerations and Payment

4.1 In consideration of satisfactory performance of the requirements of this Contract, the State shall pay the Contractor in accordance with the rates established in Exhibit C, in no event to exceed Thirty-three Million Dollars (\$ 33,000,000) without the express written approval of the Procurement Officer and subject to any other State approval requirements. The Contractor shall notify the Contract Manager, in writing, at least sixty (60) days before payments reach the specified amounts. Payments for each Purchase Order shall be made in accordance with the terms of the Purchase Order.

4.2 Payments to the Contractor shall be made no later than thirty (30) days after the State's receipt of a proper invoice for performance by the Contractor, acceptance by the State of such performance, and pursuant to the terms of the RFP. Each invoice for services rendered must include the Contractor's Federal Tax Identification Number which is \_\_\_\_\_\_\_. Charges for late payment of invoices other than as prescribed by Title 15, Subtitle 1, of the State Finance and Procurement Article, Annotated Code of Maryland, as from time to time amended, are prohibited. The final payment under this Contract will not be made until after certification is received from the Comptroller of the State that all taxes have been paid.

4.3 In addition to any other available remedies, if, in the opinion of the Procurement Officer, the Contractor fails to perform in a satisfactory and timely manner, the Procurement Officer may refuse or limit approval of any invoice for payment, and may cause payments to the Contractor to be reduced or withheld until such time as the Contractor meets performance standards as established by the Procurement Officer.

4.4 The Contractor may submit a request to adjust the contract services rates then in effect, in accordance with section 1.5 of the RFP.

4.5 Electronic funds transfer will be used by the State to pay the Contractor for this contract and any other State payments due Contractor unless the State's Comptroller's Office grants the Contractor an exemption.

## 5. Rights to Records

5.1 The Contractor agrees that all documents and materials including but not limited to, software, reports, drawings, studies, specifications, estimates, tests, maps, photographs, designs, graphics, mechanical, artwork, computations and data prepared by the Contractor solely for purposes of this Contract shall be the sole property of the Department and shall be available to the Department at any time. The Department shall have the right to use

the same without restriction and without compensation to the Contractor other than that specifically provided by this Contract.

5.2 The Contractor agrees that at all times during the term of this Contract and thereafter, works created as a deliverable under this contract, and services performed under this Contract shall be "works made for hire" as that term is interpreted under U.S. copyright law. To the extent that any products created as a deliverable under this Contract are not works for hire for the State, the Contractor hereby relinquishes, transfers, and assigns to the State all of its rights, title, and interest (including all intellectual property rights) to all such products created under this Contract, and will cooperate reasonably with the State in effectuating and registering any necessary assignments.

5.3 The Contractor shall report to the Contract Manager, promptly and in written detail, each notice or claim of copyright infringement received by the Contractor with respect to all data delivered under this agreement.

5.4 The Contractor shall not affix any restrictive markings upon any data and if such markings are affixed, the Department shall have the right at any time to modify, remove, obliterate, or ignore such warnings.

## 6. Patents, Copyrights, Intellectual Property

6.1 If the Contractor furnishes any design, device, material, process, or other item, which is covered by a patent or copyright or which is proprietary to or a trade secret of another, the Contractor shall obtain the necessary permission or license to permit the State to use such item or items.

6.2 The Contractor will defend or settle, at its own expense, any claim or suit against the State alleging that any such item furnished by the Contractor infringes any patent, trademark, copyright, or trade secret. If a third party claims that a product infringes that party's patent, trademark, trade secret, or copyright, the Contractor will defend the State against that claim at Contractor's expense and will pay all damages, costs and attorney fees that a court finally awards, provided the State (i) promptly notifies the Contractor in writing of the claim; and (ii) allows Contractor to control and cooperates with Contractor in, the defense and any related settlement negotiations. The obligations of this paragraph are in addition to those stated in section 6.3 below.

6.3 If any products furnished by the Contractor become, or in the Contractor's opinion are likely to become, the subject of a claim of infringement, the Contractor will, at its option and expense: (a) procure for the State the right to continue using the applicable item, (b) replace the product with a non-infringing product substantially complying with the item's specifications, or (c) modify the item so that it becomes non-infringing and performs in a substantially similar manner to the original item.

## 7. Confidentiality

Subject to the Maryland Public Information Act and any other applicable laws, all confidential or proprietary information and documentation relating to either party (including without limitation, any information or data stored within the Contractor's computer systems) shall be held in absolute confidence by the other party. Each party shall, however, be permitted to disclose relevant confidential information to its officers, agents and employees to the extent that such disclosure is necessary for the performance of their duties under this Contract, provided that the data may be collected, used, disclosed, stored and disseminated only as provided by and consistent with the law. The provisions of this section shall not apply to information that (a) is lawfully in the public domain; (b) has been independently developed by the other party without violation of this Contract; (c) was already in the possession of such party, (d) was supplied to such party by a third party lawfully in possession thereof and legally permitted to further disclose the information; or (e) which such party is required to disclose by law.

## 8. Loss of Data

In the event of loss of any State data or records where such loss is due to the intentional act of omission or negligence of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors or agents, the Contractor shall be responsible for recreating such lost data in the manner and on the schedule set by the Contract Manager. The Contractor shall ensure that all data is backed up and is recoverable by the Contractor.

## 9. Non-Hiring of Employees

No official or employee of the State of Maryland, as defined under State Government Article, 15-102, Annotated Code of Maryland, whose duties as such official or employee include matters relating to or affecting the subject matter of this Contract, shall, during the pendancy and term of this Contract and while serving as an official or employee of the State become or be an employee of the Contractor or any entity that is a subcontractor on this Contract.

## 10. Disputes

This Contract shall be subject to the provisions of Title 15, Subtitle 2, of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland and COMAR 21.10 (Administrative and Civil Remedies), as from time to time amended. Pending resolution of a claim, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with the performance of the Contract in accordance with the Procurement Officer's decision. Unless a lesser period is provided by applicable statute or regulation, the Contractor must file a written notice of claim with the Procurement Officer within 30 days after the basis for the claim is known or should have been known, whichever is earlier. Contemporaneously with or within 30 days of the filing of a notice of claim, but no later than the date of final payment under the Contract, the Contractor must submit to the Procurement Officer its written claim containing the information specified in COMAR 21.10.04.02.

## 11. Maryland Law

10.1 This Contract shall be construed, interpreted, and enforced according to the laws of the State of Maryland.

10.2 The Maryland Uniform Computer Information Transactions Act (Commercial Law Article, Title 22 of the Annotated Code of Maryland) does not apply to this Contract or the software license acquired hereunder.

## 12. Nondiscrimination in Employment

The Contractor agrees: (a) not to discriminate in any manner against an employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, marital status, national origin, ancestry, or disability of a qualified individual with a disability; (b) to include a provision similar to that contained in subsection (a), above, in any underlying subcontract except a subcontract for standard commercial supplies or raw materials; and (c) to post and to cause subcontractors to post in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the substance of this clause.

## **13.** Contingent Fee Prohibition

The Contractor warrants that it has not employed or retained any person, partnership, corporation, or other entity, other than a bona fide employee or agent working for the Contractor, to solicit or secure this agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, partnership, corporation or other entity, other than a bona fide employee or agent, any fee or any other consideration contingent on the making of this agreement.

## 14. Non-availability of Funding

If the General Assembly fails to appropriate funds or if funds are not otherwise made available for continued performance for any fiscal period of this Contract succeeding the first fiscal period, this Contract shall be canceled automatically as of the beginning of the fiscal year for which funds were not appropriated or otherwise made available; provided, however, that this will not affect either the State's rights or the Contractor's rights under any termination clause in this Contract. The effect of termination of the Contract hereunder will be to discharge both the Contractor and the State of Maryland from future performance of the Contract, but not from their rights and obligations existing at the time of termination. The Contractor shall be reimbursed for the reasonable value of any nonrecurring costs incurred but not amortized in the price of the Contract. The State shall notify the Contractor as soon as it has knowledge that funds may not be available for the continuation of this Contract for each succeeding fiscal period beyond the first.

## **15.** Termination for Cause

If the Contractor fails to fulfill its obligations under this Contract properly and on time, or otherwise violates any provision of the Contract, the State may terminate the Contract by written notice to the Contractor. The notice shall specify the acts or omissions relied upon as cause for termination. All finished or unfinished work provided by the Contractor shall, at the State's option, become the State's property. The State of Maryland shall pay the Contractor fair and equitable compensation for satisfactory performance prior to receipt of notice of termination, less the amount of damages caused by the Contractor's breach. If the damages are more than the compensation payable to the Contractor, the Contractor will remain liable after termination and the State can affirmatively collect damages. Termination hereunder, including the termination of the rights and obligations of the parties, shall be governed by the provisions of COMAR 21.07.01.11B.

## 16. Termination for Convenience

The performance of work under this Contract may be terminated by the State in accordance with this clause in whole, or from time to time in part, whenever the State shall determine that such termination is in the best interest of the State. The State will pay all reasonable costs associated with this Contract that the Contractor has incurred up to the date of termination, and all reasonable costs associated with termination of the Contract; provided, however, the Contractor shall not be reimbursed for any anticipatory profits that have not been earned up to the date of termination. Termination hereunder, including the determination of the rights and obligations of the parties, shall be governed by the provisions of COMAR 21.07.01.12A(2).

## 17. Delays and Extensions of Time

The Contractor agrees to perform this Contract continuously and diligently. No charges or claims for damages shall be made by the Contractor for any delays or hindrances, regardless of cause, in the performance of services under this Contract. Time extensions will be granted only for excusable delays that arise from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor, including but not restricted to acts of God, acts of the public enemy, acts of the State in either its sovereign or contractual capacity, acts of another contractor in the performance of a contract with the State, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, or delays of subcontractors or suppliers arising from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of either the Contractor or the subcontractors or suppliers.

#### 18. Suspension of Work

The State unilaterally may order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay, or interrupt all or any part of its performance for such period of time as the Procurement Officer may determine to be appropriate for the convenience of the State.

## **19. Pre-Existing Regulations**

In accordance with the provisions of Section 11-206 of the State Finance and Procurement Article, Annotated Code of Maryland, as from time to time amended, the regulations set forth in Title 21 of the Code of Maryland Regulations (COMAR 21) in effect on the date of execution of this Contract are applicable to this Contract.

## 20. Financial Disclosure

The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of Section 13-221 of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, which requires that every business that enters into contracts, leases, or other agreements with the State of Maryland or its agencies during a calendar year under which the business is to receive in the aggregate, \$100,000 or more, shall within 30 days of the time when the aggregate value of these contracts, leases or other agreements reaches \$100,000, file with the Secretary of the State of Maryland certain specified information to include disclosure of beneficial ownership of the business.

## 21. Political Contribution Disclosure

The Contractor shall comply with Election Law, Sections 14-101 through 14-108, Annotated Code of Maryland, which requires that every person that enters into contracts, leases, or other agreements with the State, a county, or an incorporated municipality, or their agencies, during a calendar year in which the person receives in the aggregate \$100,000 or more, shall, file with the State Board of Elections a statement disclosing contributions in excess of \$500 made during the reporting period to a candidate for elective office in any primary or general election. The statement shall be filed with the State Board of Elections: (1) before a purchase or execution of a lease or contract by the State, a county, an incorporated municipality, or their agencies, and shall cover the preceding two calendar years; and (2) if the contribution is made after the execution of a lease or contract, then twice a year, throughout the contract term, on: (a) February 5, to cover the 6-month period ending January 31; and (b) August 5, to cover the 6-month period ending July 31.

## 22. Retention of Records

The Contractor shall retain and maintain all records and documents in any way relating to this Contract for three years after final payment by the State of Maryland under this Contract or any applicable statute of limitations, whichever is longer, and shall make them available for inspection and audit by authorized representatives of the State, including the Procurement Officer or the Procurement Officer's designee, the Contract Manager or the Contract Manager's designee, at all reasonable times. The Contractor shall, upon request by the department, surrender all and every copy of documents needed by the State, including such documents as, but not limited to the Contractor and subcontractor's employee time sheets relating to work performed under the Contract.

## 23. Warranties

The Contractor hereby represents and warrants that:

A. It is qualified to do business in the State of Maryland and that it will take such action as, from time to time hereafter, may be necessary to remain so qualified;

B. It is not in arrears with respect to the payment of any monies due and owing the State of Maryland, or any department or unit thereof, including but not limited to the payment of taxes and employee benefits, and that it shall not become so in arrears during the term of this Contract;

C. It shall comply with all federal, State and local laws, regulations, and ordinances applicable to its activities and obligations under this Contract; and,

D. It shall obtain, at its expense, all licenses, permits, insurance, and governmental approvals, if any, necessary to the performance of its obligations under this Contract.

## 24. Cost and Price Certification

By submitting cost or price information, the Contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge that the information submitted is accurate, complete, and current as of the date of the Financial Proposal.

The price under this Contract and any change order or modification hereunder, including profit or fee, shall be adjusted to exclude any significant price increases occurring because the Contractor furnished cost or price information which, as of the date of its bid or offer, was inaccurate, incomplete, or not current.

## 25. Subcontracting; Assignment

The Contractor may not subcontract any portion of the services provided under this Contract without obtaining the prior written approval of the State of Maryland, nor may the Contractor assign this Contract or any of its rights or obligations hereunder, without the prior written approval of the State. Any such subcontract or assignment shall include the terms of Sections 9 and 11 through 24 of this Contract and any other terms and conditions that the State deems necessary to protect its interests. The State shall not be responsible for the fulfillment of the Contractor's obligations to the subcontractors.

## 26. Indemnification

26.1 The Contractor shall indemnify the State against liability for any costs, expenses, loss, suits, actions, or claims of any character arising from or relating to the performance of the Contractor or its subcontractors under this Contract.

26.2 The State of Maryland has no obligation to provide legal counsel or defense to the Contractor or its subcontractors in the event that a suit, claim or action of any character is brought by any person not party to this Agreement against the Contractor or its subcontractors as a result of or relating to the Contractor's obligations under this Contract.

26.3 The State has no obligation for the payment of any judgments or the settlement of any claims against the Contractor or its subcontractors as a result of or relating to the Contractor's obligations under this Contract.

26.4 The Contractor shall immediately notify the Procurement Officer of any claim or suit made or filed against the Contractor or its subcontractors regarding any matter resulting from or relating to the Contractor's obligations under the Contract, and will cooperate, assist, and consult with the State in the defense or investigation of any claim, suit, or action made or filed against the State as a result of or relating to the Contractor's performance under this Contract.

## 27. Limitation of Liability

27.1 For breach of this Contract, negligence, misrepresentation or any other contract or tort claim, Contractor shall be liable as follows:

A. For infringement of patents, trademarks, trade secrets and copyrights as provided in Section 6 ("Patents, Copyrights, Intellectual Property") of this Contract;

B. Without limitation for damages for bodily injury (including death) and damage to real property and tangible personal property;

C. For all other claims, damages, loss, costs, expenses, suits or actions in any way related to this Contract, regardless of the form, Contractor's liability shall be limited to three (3) times the total dollar amount invoiced under this Contract up to the date of settlement or final award of any such claim. Third party claims arising under Section 26 ("Indemnification"), of this Contract are included in this limitation of liability only if the State is immune from liability. Contractor's liability for third party claims arising under Section 26 of this Contract shall be unlimited if the State is not immune from liability for claims arising under Section 26.

27.2 As provided in this section, the limitations contained in this section are the maximum for which the Contractor and its subcontractors are collectively responsible for damages arising as a result of this Contract.

## 28. Performance Bond

The required bond shall be in the form specified. See RFP, Attachment I.

## 29. Liquidated Damages

Time is an essential element of the contract and it is important that the work be vigorously prosecuted until completion. For each day than any work or deliverable shall remain uncompleted beyond the time(s) specified elsewhere in the contract, the Contractor shall be liable for liquidated damages in the amount(s) provided for in the RFP, provided, however, that due account shall be taken of any adjustment of specified completion time(s) for completion of work as granted by approved change orders.

## 30. Nonvisual Accessibility Warranty

The Contractor warrants that the information technology and services provided in performance of this Agreement (1) provides equivalent access for effective use by both visual and nonvisual means; (2) will present information, including prompts used for interactive communications, in formats intended for both visual and nonvisual use; (3) if intended for use in a network, can be integrated into networks for obtaining, retrieving, and disseminating information used by individuals who are not blind or visually impaired; and (4) is available, whenever possible, without modification for compatibility with software and hardware for nonvisual access. The Contractor further warrants that the cost, if any, of modifying the information technology for compatibility with software and hardware used for nonvisual access will not increase the cost of the information technology by more than 5 percent. For purposes of this section, the phrase "equivalent access" means the ability to receive, use, and manipulate information and operate controls necessary to access and use information technology by nonvisual means.

#### 31. Administrative

31.1 Procurement Officer. The work to be accomplished under this Contract shall be performed under the direction of the Procurement Officer. All matters relating to the interpretation of this Agreement shall be referred to the Procurement Officer for determination.

31.2 Notices. All notices hereunder shall be in writing and either delivered personally or sent by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid as follows:

If to the State:

Attn: Sandra M. Smith, Director of Voice and Technical Services
Telecommunications Division
Maryland Department of Budget & Management
301 West Preston Street, Suite 1304
Baltimore, MD 21201

If to the Contractor:

32. Guarantee of Performance by \_\_\_\_\_\_. (If Applicable)

[corporate name of parent corporation] hereby guarantees absolutely the full, prompt and complete performance by " [subsidiary/the Contractor]" of all the terms, conditions and obligations contained in this Contract, as it may be amended from time to time, including any and all exhibits that are now or may become incorporated hereunto, and other obligations of every nature and kind that now or may in the future arise out of or in connection with this Contract, including any and all financial commitments, obligations and liabilities. " [corporate name of parent]" may not transfer this absolute guaranty to any other person or entity without the prior express written approval of the State. " [corporate name of parent]" further agrees that if the State brings any claim, action, suit or proceeding against "[subsidiary]","[corporate name of parent]" may be named as a party, in its capacity as Absolute Guarantor.

### **33.** Orderly Termination

Contractor agrees that at the commencement of this Contract it shall have ready and available sufficient levels of inventory and qualified personnel to be able to promptly, diligently, efficiently and completely prosecute the transition of services from the previous service provider to Contractor within one hundred twenty (120) days of the commencement of this Contract according to a transition plan provided by Contractor that has received the prior written approval of the Department.

Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Contract, Contractor shall:

- a) promptly, diligently, efficiently and in good faith work with any successor contractor and the Department to transition services over to the successor contractor;
- b) during the transition period, continue to be subject to all of the terms and conditions of the Contract, including, by way of example only, those that govern the rates, fees and other charges that Contractor may be permitted to charge the Department under the Contract, and under no circumstances shall the Contractor be entitled to raise any such rates, fees and/or other charges during the transition period; and,
- c) at the end of the transition period, provide the Department with a summary report of the transition that, among other things, contains a certification signed by an officer of the Contractor who is authorized to legally bind Contractor, that states that all actions necessary to successfully transition the services to the successor contractor have been completed, or if they have not been completed, why they have not been completed. The Department shall be entitled to withhold any final payment(s) otherwise due Contractor until it receives the summary report and certification specified in this subsection.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties have executed this Contract as of the date hereinabove set forth.

CONTRACTOR	MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF BUDGET AND MANAGEMENT		
By:	By:		
Date	Date		
Witness	Witness		
Approved for form and legal sufficiency this	day of, 2004.		

Assistant Attorney General

## ATTACHMENT B – BID/PROPOSAL AFFIDAVIT

#### A. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

#### I HEREBY AFFIRM THAT:

I am the (title) \_\_\_\_\_\_ and the duly authorized representative of (business) \_\_\_\_\_\_ and that I possess the legal authority to make this Affidavit on behalf of myself and the business for which I am acting.

#### B. AFFIRMATION REGARDING BRIBERY CONVICTIONS

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

Neither I, nor to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, the above business (as is defined in Section 16-101(b) of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland), or any of its officers, directors, partners, or any of its employees directly involved in obtaining or performing contracts with public bodies (as is defined in Section 16-101(f) of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland), has been convicted of, or has had probation before judgment imposed pursuant to Criminal Procedure Article, §6-220, Annotated Code of Maryland, or has pleaded nolo contendere to a charge of, bribery, attempted bribery, or conspiracy to bribe in violation of Maryland law, or of the law of any other state or federal law, except as follows (indicate the reasons why the affirmation cannot be given and list any conviction, plea, or imposition of probation before judgment with the date, court, official or administrative body, the sentence or disposition, the name(s) of person(s) involved, and their current positions and responsibilities with the business):

C. AFFIRMATION REGARDING OTHER CONVICTIONS

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

Neither I, nor to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, the above business, or any of its officers, directors, partners, or any of its employees directly involved in obtaining or performing contracts with public bodies, has:

(a) Been convicted under state or federal statute of a criminal offense incident to obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public or private contract, fraud, embezzlement, theft, forgery, falsification or destruction of records, or receiving stolen property;

(b) Been convicted of any criminal violation of a state or federal antitrust statute;

(c) Been convicted under the provisions of Title 18 of the United States Code for violation of the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organization Act, 18 U.S.C. §1961, et seq., or the Mail Fraud Act, 18 U.S.C. §1341, et seq., for acts arising out of the submission of bids or proposals for a public or private contract;

(d) Been convicted of a violation of the State Minority Business Enterprise Law, Section 14-308 of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland;

(e) Been convicted of conspiracy to commit any act or omission that would constitute grounds for conviction or liability under any law or statute described in subsection (a), (b), (c), or (d) above;

(f) Been found civilly liable under a state or federal antitrust statute for acts or omissions in connection with the submission of bids or proposals for a public or private contract;

(g) Admitted in writing or under oath, during the course of an official investigation or other proceedings, acts or omissions that would constitute grounds for conviction or liability under any law or statute described above, except as follows (indicate reasons why the affirmations cannot be given, and list any conviction, plea, or imposition of probation before judgment with the date, court, official or administrative body, the sentence or disposition, the name(s) of the person(s) involved and their current positions and responsibilities with the business, and the status of any debarment):

#### D. AFFIRMATION REGARDING DEBARMENT

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

Neither I, nor to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, the above business, or any of its officers, directors, partners, or any of its employees directly involved in obtaining or performing contracts with public bodies, has ever been suspended or debarred (including being issued a limited denial of participation) by any public entity, except as follows (list each debarment or suspension providing the dates of the suspension or debarment, the name of the public entity and the status of the proceedings, the name(s) of the person(s) involved and their current positions and responsibilities with the business, the grounds of the debarment or suspension, and the details of each person's involvement in any activity that formed the grounds of the debarment or suspension):

#### E. AFFIRMATION REGARDING DEBARMENT OF RELATED ENTITIES

\_\_\_\_\_

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

(1) The business was not established and it does not operate in a manner designed to evade the application of or defeat the purpose of debarment pursuant to Sections 16-101, et seq., of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland; and

(2) The business is not a successor, assignee, subsidiary, or affiliate of a suspended or debarred business, except as follows (you must indicate the reasons why the affirmations cannot be given without qualification):

#### F. SUB-CONTRACT AFFIRMATION

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

Neither I, nor to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, the above business, has knowingly entered into a contract with a public body under which a person debarred or suspended under Title 16 of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland will provide, directly or indirectly, supplies, services, architectural services, construction related services, leases of real property, or construction.

#### G. AFFIRMATION REGARDING COLLUSION

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

Neither I, nor to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, the above business has:

(1) Agreed, conspired, connived, or colluded to produce a deceptive show of competition in the compilation of the accompanying bid or offer that is being submitted;

(2) In any manner, directly or indirectly, entered into any agreement of any kind to fix the bid price or price proposal of the bidder or offeror or of any competitor, or otherwise taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the contract for which the accompanying bid or offer is submitted.

#### H. FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE AFFIRMATION

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

I am aware of, and the above business will comply with, the provisions of Section 13-221 of the State Finance and Procurement Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, which require that every business that enters into contracts, leases, or other agreements with the State of Maryland or its agencies during a calendar year under which the business is to receive in the aggregate \$100,000 or more shall, within 30 days of the time when the aggregate value of the contracts, leases, or other agreements reaches \$100,000, file with the Secretary of State of Maryland certain specified information to include disclosure of beneficial ownership of the business.

#### I. POLITICAL CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE AFFIRMATION

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

I am aware of, and the above business will comply with, Election Law Article, §§14-101—14-108, Annotated Code of Maryland, which requires that every person that enters into contracts, leases, or other agreements with the State of Maryland, including its agencies or a political subdivision of the State, during a calendar year in which the person receives in the aggregate \$100,000 or more shall file with the State Administrative Board of Election Laws a statement disclosing contributions in excess of \$500 made during the reporting period to a candidate for elective office in any primary or general election.

#### J. DRUG AND ALCOHOL FREE WORKPLACE

(Applicable to all contracts unless the contract is for a law enforcement agency and the agency head or the agency head's designee has determined that application of COMAR 21.11.08 and this certification would be inappropriate in connection with the law enforcement agency's undercover operations.)

#### I CERTIFY THAT:

(1) Terms defined in COMAR 21.11.08 shall have the same meanings when used in this certification.

(2) By submission of its bid or offer, the business, if other than an individual, certifies and agrees that, with respect to its employees to be employed under a contract resulting from this solicitation, the business shall:

(a) Maintain a workplace free of drug and alcohol abuse during the term of the contract;

(b) Publish a statement notifying its employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of drugs, and the abuse of drugs or alcohol is prohibited in the business' workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of these prohibitions;

(c) Prohibit its employees from working under the influence of drugs or alcohol;

(d) Not hire or assign to work on the contract anyone whom the business knows, or in the exercise of due diligence should know, currently abuses drugs or alcohol and is not actively engaged in a bona fide drug or alcohol abuse assistance or rehabilitation program;

(e) Promptly inform the appropriate law enforcement agency of every drug-related crime that occurs in its workplace if the business has observed the violation or otherwise has reliable information that a violation has occurred;

(f) Establish drug and alcohol abuse awareness programs to inform its employees about:

(i) The dangers of drug and alcohol abuse in the workplace;

(ii) The business' policy of maintaining a drug and alcohol free workplace;

(iii) Any available drug and alcohol counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(iv) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees who abuse drugs and alcohol in the workplace;

(g) Provide all employees engaged in the performance of the contract with a copy of the statement required by §J(2)(b), above;

(h) Notify its employees in the statement required by J(2)(b), above, that as a condition of continued employment on the contract, the employee shall:

(i) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(ii) Notify the employer of any criminal drug or alcohol abuse conviction for an offense occurring in the workplace not later than 5 days after a conviction;

(i) Notify the procurement officer within 10 days after receiving notice under J(2)(h)(ii), above, or otherwise receiving actual notice of a conviction;

(j) Within 30 days after receiving notice under J(2)(h)(ii), above, or otherwise receiving actual notice of a conviction, impose either of the following sanctions or remedial measures on any employee who is convicted of a drug or alcohol abuse offense occurring in the workplace:

(i) Take appropriate personnel action against an employee, up to and including termination; or

(ii) Require an employee to satisfactorily participate in a bona fide drug or alcohol abuse assistance or rehabilitation program; and

(k) Make a good faith effort to maintain a drug and alcohol free workplace through implementation of J(2)(a), above.

(3) If the business is an individual, the individual shall certify and agree as set forth in J(4), below, that the individual shall not engage in the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of drugs or the abuse of drugs or alcohol in the performance of the contract.

#### (4) I acknowledge and agree that:

(a) The award of the contract is conditional upon compliance with COMAR 21.11.08 and this certification;

(b) The violation of the provisions of COMAR 21.11.08 or this certification shall be cause to suspend payments under, or terminate the contract for default under COMAR 21.07.01.11 or 21.07.03.15, as applicable; and

(c) The violation of the provisions of COMAR 21.11.08 or this certification in connection with the contract may, in the exercise of the discretion of the Board of Public Works, result in suspension and debarment of the business under COMAR 21.08.06.

#### K. CERTIFICATION OF CORPORATION REGISTRATION AND TAX PAYMENT

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

(1) The business named above is a (domestic \_\_\_\_\_) (foreign \_\_\_\_) corporation registered in accordance with the Corporations and Associations Article, Annotated Code of Maryland, and that it is in good standing and has filed all of its annual reports, together with filing fees, with the Maryland State Department of Assessments and Taxation, and that the name and address of its resident agent filed with the State Department of Assessments and Taxation is: Name: Address: \_\_\_.

(If not applicable, so state).

(2) Except as validly contested, the business has paid, or has arranged for payment of, all taxes due the State of Maryland and has filed all required returns and reports with the Comptroller of the Treasury, the State Department of Assessments and Taxation, and the Department of Labor, Licensing, and Regulation, as applicable, and will have paid all withholding taxes due the State of Maryland prior to final settlement.

#### L. CONTINGENT FEES

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

The business has not employed or retained any person, partnership, corporation, or other entity, other than a bona fide employee or agent working for the business, to solicit or secure the Contract, and that the business has not paid or agreed to pay any person, partnership, corporation, or other entity, other than a bona fide employee or agent, any fee or any other consideration contingent on the making of the Contract.

M. Repealed.

#### N. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I ACKNOWLEDGE THAT this Affidavit is to be furnished to the Procurement Officer and may be distributed to units of: (1) the State of Maryland; (2) counties or other subdivisions of the State of Maryland; (3) other states; and (4) the federal government. I further acknowledge that this Affidavit is subject to applicable laws of the United States and the State of Maryland, both criminal and civil, and that nothing in this Affidavit or any contract resulting from the submission of this bid or proposal shall be construed to supersede, amend, modify or waive, on behalf of the State of Maryland, or any unit of the State of Maryland having jurisdiction, the exercise of any statutory right or remedy conferred by the Constitution and the laws of Maryland with respect to any misrepresentation made or any violation of the obligations, terms and convenants undertaken by the above business with respect to (1) this Affidavit, (2) the contract, and (3) other Affidavits comprising part of the contract.

I DO SOLEMNLY DECLARE AND AFFIRM UNDER THE PENALTIES OF PERJURY THAT THE CONTENTS OF THIS AFFIDAVIT ARE TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, INFORMATION, AND BELIEF. Date: \_\_\_\_\_ By: \_\_(Authorized Representative and Affiant)\_\_\_

#### THE BALANCE OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

## ATTACHMENT C - COMAR 21.07.01.25 CONTRACT AFFIDAVIT

#### A. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

#### I HEREBY AFFIRM THAT:

I am the \_\_\_\_\_\_(title)\_\_\_\_\_ and the duly authorized representative of \_\_\_\_\_\_(business)\_\_\_\_\_ and that I possess the legal authority to make this Affidavit on behalf of myself and the business for which I am acting.

#### B. CERTIFICATION OF CORPORATION REGISTRATION AND TAX PAYMENT

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

(1) The business named above is a (domestic) (foreign) corporation registered in accordance with the
Corporations and Associations Article, Annotated Code of Maryland, and that it is in good standing and has filed
all of its annual reports, together with filing fees, with the Maryland State Department of Assessments and
Taxation, and that the name and address of its resident agent filed with the State Department of Assessments and
Taxation is: Name:
Address

(2) Except as validly contested, the business has paid, or has arranged for payment of, all taxes due the State of Maryland and has filed all required returns and reports with the Comptroller of the Treasury, the State Department of Assessments and Taxation, and the Department of Labor, Licensing, and Regulation, as applicable, and will have paid all withholding taxes due the State of Maryland prior to final settlement.

#### C. CERTAIN AFFIRMATIONS VALID

#### I FURTHER AFFIRM THAT:

To the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, each of the affirmations, certifications, or acknowledgements contained in that certain Bid/Proposal Affidavit dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_, and executed by me for the purpose of obtaining the contract to which this Exhibit is attached remains true and correct in all respects as if made as of the date of this Contract Affidavit and as if fully set forth herein.

I DO SOLEMNLY DECLARE AND AFFIRM UNDER THE PENALTIES OF PERJURY THAT THE CONTENTS OF THIS AFFIDAVIT ARE TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, INFORMATION, AND BELIEF. Date:\_\_\_\_\_\_By:\_\_\_\_(Authorized Representative and Affiant)\_\_\_\_\_

### ATTACHMENT D – MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION

#### State of Maryland Department of Budget & Management Minority Business Enterprise Participation

#### **PURPOSE**

Contractor shall structure its procedures for the performance of the work required in this contract to attempt to achieve the minority business enterprise (MBE) goal stated in the Invitation for Bids or Request for Proposals. MBE performance must be in accordance with this Exhibit, as authorized by Code of Maryland Regulations (COMAR) 21.11.03. Contractor agrees to exercise all good faith efforts to carry out the requirements set forth in this Exhibit.

#### **DEFINITIONS**

As used in this Exhibit, the following words have the meanings indicated.

- "Certification" means a determination made by the Maryland Department of Transportation that a legal entity is a minority business enterprise.
- "MBE Liaison" is the employee designated to administer this Department's MBE program.
- "Minority Business Enterprise" or "MBE" means any legal entity, other than a joint venture, organized to engage in commercial transactions, that is:
  - (1) at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more individuals who are socially and economically disadvantaged; and
  - (2) managed by, and the daily business operations of which are controlled by, one or more of the socially and economically disadvantaged individuals who own it.

*Note:* A minority business enterprise also includes a not-for-profit entity organized to promote the interests of physically or mentally disabled individuals.

An MBE **must** be certified in order to have its contract participation counted under the Department's MBE program.

#### MBE GOALS AND SUB-GOALS

An overall MBE subcontract participation goal of 5 percent of the total contract dollar amount has been established for this procurement. This dollar amount includes:

- □ A sub-goal of 0 percent of the total contract dollar amount to be allocated to certified minority business enterprises classified as women-owned businesses.
- □ A sub-goal of 0 percent of the total contract dollar amount to be allocated to certified minority business enterprises classified as African American-owned businesses.

By submitting a response to this solicitation, the bidder or offeror agrees that these dollar amounts of the contract will be performed by certified minority business enterprises as specified.

- A prime contractor including an MBE prime contractor must accomplish an amount of work not less than the MBE subcontract goal with certified MBE subcontractors.
- A prime contractor comprising a joint venture that includes MBE partner(s) must accomplish the MBE subcontract goal with certified MBE subcontractors.

#### SOLICITATION AND CONTRACT FORMATION

- ♦ An Offeror must submit with its response to this solicitation completed MBE Participation Forms (Attachments D-1, D-2, D-3 and D-4) whereby the offeror acknowledges the certified MBE participation goal, commits to make a good faith effort to achieve the goal, affirms tha MBE subcontractors were treated fairly in the Solicitation process, affirms outreach efforts, identifies MBE Participation and affirms MBE sub-contractor participation. If an Offeror fails to submit these four participation forms (Attachments A, B, C, and D), the Department may deem the Offeror not responsible or offer not reasonably susceptible of being selected for award.
- In the rare event that the apparent awardee believes a waiver of the MBE goal is necessary it may submit a waiver request that complies with COMAR 21.11.03.11 (ATTACHMENT E) in the place of the MBE Participation Schedule.

Any other documentation required by the Department's MBE Liaison to ascertain Offeror responsibility in connection with the certified MBE participation goal shall be submitted as required.

#### CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION REQUIREMENTS

Contractor shall:

- 1. Submit monthly to the Department a report listing all payments made to MBE subcontractors during the preceding 30 days, as well as any unpaid invoices, over 30 days old, received from any certified MBE subcontractor, the amount of each invoice and the reason payment has not been made (Attachment D-5).
- 2. Include in its agreements with its certified MBE subcontractors a requirement that those subcontractors submit monthly to the Department a report that identifies the prime contract and lists all payments received from Contractor in the preceding 30 days, as well as any outstanding invoices, and the amount of those invoices (Attachment D-6).
- 3. Maintain such records as are necessary to confirm compliance with its MBE participation obligations. These records must indicate the identity of certified minority and non-minority subcontractors employed on the contract, the type of work performed by each, and the actual dollar value of work performed.
- 4. Consent to provide such documentation as reasonably requested and to provide right-of-entry at reasonable times for purposes of the State's representatives verifying compliance with the MBE participation obligations. Contractor must retain all records concerning MBE participation and make them available for State inspection for three years after final completion of the contract.
- 5. At the option of the procurement agency, upon completion of the contract and before final payment and/or release of retainage, submit a final report in affidavit form and under penalty of perjury, of all payments made to, or withheld from MBE subcontractors.

#### ADDITIONAL ATTACHMENTS TO MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION FORMS

**ATTACHMENT D-1** - *Certified MBE Utilization and Fair Solicitation Affidavit* (must be submitted with bid or offer)

ATTACHMENT D-2 - Outreach Efforts Compliance (must be submitted with bid or offer)

ATTACHMENT D-3 - MBE Participation Schedule (must be submitted with bid or offer)

#### ATTACHMENT D-4 - Subcontractor Project Participation Statement (must be submitted with bid or offer)

ATTACHMENT D-5 - Maryland Department of Budget and Management Minority Business Enterprise Participation – Prime Contractor Paid/Unpaid MBE Invoice Report

ATTACHMENT D-6 - Maryland Department of Budget and Management Minority Business Enterprise Participation – Subcontractor Paid/Unpaid MBE Invoice Report

# ATTACHMENT D-1 CERTIFIED MBE UTILIZATION AND FAIR SOLICITATION AFFIDAVIT

In conjunction with the bid or offer submitted in response to Solicitation No. \_\_\_\_\_, I affirm the following:

- 1. I acknowledge the overall certified Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) participation goal of 5 percent. I commit to make a good faith effort to achieve this goal.
- 2. In the solicitation of subcontract quotations or offers, MBE subcontractors were provided not less than the same information and amount of time to respond as were non-MBE subcontractors.
- 3. The solicitation process was conducted in such a manner so as to not place MBE subcontractors at a competitive disadvantage to non-MBE subcontractors.

I solemnly affirm under the penalties of perjury that the contents of this paper are true to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief.

Bidder/Offeror Name

Signature of Affiant

Address

Printed Name, Title

Date

# Submit This Affidavit with Bid/Proposal

# ATTACHMENT D-2 Outreach Efforts Compliance Statement

In conjunction with the bid or offer submitted in response to Solicitation No. \_\_\_\_\_\_, I state the following:

- 1. Bidder/ Offeror identified opportunities to subcontract in these specific work categories:
- 2. Attached to this form are copies of written solicitations (with bidding instructions) used to solicit certified MBEs for these subcontract opportunities.
- 3. Bidder/Offeror made the following attempts to contact personally the solicited MBEs:
- 4. D Bidder/Offeror assisted MBEs to fulfill or to seek waiver of bonding requirements. (DESCRIBE EFFORTS)

□ This project does not involve bonding requirements.

5. □ Bidder/Offeror did/did not attend the pre-bid conference □ No pre-bid conference was held.

y:
Authorized Signature
Name, Title

Date

#### Submit This Form with Bid/Proposal

# ATTACHMENT D-3 MBE PARTICIPATION SCHEDULE

## (Submit This Affidavit with Bid/Proposal)

Prime Contractor (Firm Name, Address, Phone)	Project Description			
Project Number	Total Contract Amount \$			
List Information For Each Certified MBE Subcontractor On This Project				
A. Minority Firm Name, Address, Phone	MBE Classification:			
	MBE Certification Number			
Work To Be Performed				
Project Commitment Date	Project Completion Date			
Agreed Dollar Amount	Percentage Of Total Contract			
B. Minority Firm Name, Address, Phone	MBE Classification:			
	MBE Certification Number			
Work To Be Performed				
Project Commitment Date	Project Completion Date			
Agreed Dollar Amount   Percentage Of Total Contract				
C. Minority Firm Name, Address, Phone	MBE Classification:			
	MBE Certification Number			
Work To Be Performed				
Project Commitment Date	Project Completion Date			
Agreed Dollar Amount	Percentage Of Total Contract			
D. Minority Firm Name, Address, Phone MBE Classification:				
	MBE Certification Number			
Work To Be Performed				
Project Commitment Date	Project Completion Date			
Agreed Dollar Amount	Percentage Of Total Contract			
MBE Firms Total Dollar Amount Overall \$ MBE Firms Total Percentage Overall% African American MBE Dollar Amount \$	List Additional MBE Subcontractors Or Provide Any Additional Comments on Separate Paper.			

African American MBE Percentage \_\_\_\_\_% Women MBE Dollar Amount \$\_\_\_\_\_% Women MBE Percentage \_\_\_\_\_%

Document Prepared By: (please print or type)
Name:\_\_\_\_\_\_\_Title:\_\_\_\_\_\_

# ATTACHMENT D-4 SUBCONTRACTOR PROJECT PARTICIPATION STATEMENT

SUBM	IIT ONE FORM FOR EACH CERTIF	IED MBE LISTED IN THE MBE PARTICIPATION SCHEDULE			
Provi	Provided that is awarded the State contract in (Prime Contractor Name)				
conju	nction with Solicitation No	, it and, (Subcontractor Name )			
	ribe work)	, intend to enter into a contract by which Subcontractor shall			
	,				
	$\square \qquad \text{No bonds are}$	required of Subcontractor			
	$\Box \qquad \text{The following}$	amount and type of bonds are required of Subcontractor:			
	Prime Contractor Signature	Subcontractor Signature			
By:	Name, Title	By:Name, Title			
	Tunio, The	Tranie, True			
	Date	Date			

Submit This Affidavit with Bid/Proposal

## ATTACHMENTS D-5 & 6 PRIME CONTRACTOR MBE REPORTING INSTRUCTIONS

RFP#:	
BPO#:_	

These instructions are meant to accompany the customized reporting forms sent to you by the Procurement Officer for the contract referenced above. If, after reading these instructions, you have additional questions or need further clarification, please contact the Procurement Officer immediately.

- 1. As the prime contractor, you have entered into a contractual agreement with the State of Maryland. As such, your company/firm is responsible for successful completion of all deliverables under the contract, including your commitment to making a good faith effort to meet the MBE participation goal(s) established for this contract. Part of that effort, as outlined in the RFP, includes submission of monthly reports to the State regarding the previous month's MBE payment activity. Reporting forms D-5 (Prime Contractor Paid/Unpaid MBE Invoice Report) and D-6 (Subcontractor Paid/Unpaid MBE Invoice Report) are attached for your use and convenience.
  - 2. The prime contractor must complete a separate form D-5 for each MBE subcontractor for each month of the contract and submit one copy to each of the locations indicated at the bottom of the form. The report is due not later than the 15<sup>th</sup> of the month following the month that is being reported. For example, the report for January's activity is due not later than the 15<sup>th</sup> of February. With the approval of the contract manager, the report may be submitted electronically. Note: Reports are required to be submitted each month, regardless of whether there was any MBE payment activity for the reporting month.
  - 3. The prime contractor is responsible for ensuring that each subcontractor receives a copy (e-copy and/or hard copy) of form D-6. The prime contractor should make sure that the subcontractor receives all the information necessary to complete the form properly, i.e., all of the information located in the upper right corner of the form. It may be wise to customize form D-6 (upper right corner of the form) for the subcontractor the same as the form D-5 was customized by the Procurement Officer for the benefit of the prime contractor. This will help to minimize any confusion for those who receive and review the reports.
  - 4. It is the responsibility of the prime contractor to make sure that all subcontractors submit reports not later than the 15<sup>th</sup> of each month regardless of whether there was any MBE payment activity for the reporting month. Actual payment data is verified and entered into the State's financial management tracking system from the subcontractor's D-6 report only. Therefore, if the subcontractor(s) do not submit their D-6 payment reports, the prime contractor cannot and will not be given credit for subcontractor payments, regardless of the prime contractor's proper submission of the D-5 reports. The contract manager will contact the prime contractors. The prime contractor must promptly notify the contract manager if, during the course of the contract, a new MBE subcontractor is utilized. Failure to comply with the MBE reporting requirements and/or failure to make a good faith effort to meet the MBE goal(s) will cause the prime contractor to have an unfavorable standing with the Department for future contracting opportunities.

## **ATTACHMENT D-5** Maryland Department of Budget and Management **Minority Business Enterprise Participation** Prime Contractor Paid/Unpaid MBE Invoice Report

Report #:1 Reporting Period (Month/Year):/ Report Due By the 15 <sup>th</sup> of the following Month.		Contract # Contracting Unit Contract Amount MBE Sub Contract Amt Contract Begin Date Contract End Date Services Provided			
Prime Contractor:			Contact Person:		
Address:					
City:			State:	ZIP:	
Phone:	FAX:				
Subcontractor Name:		Contact Person:			
Phone:	FAX:				
Subcontractor Services Provided:					
List all payments made to MBE subcontractor named above during this reporting period.		List dates/amounts of any unpaid invoices received from subcontractor during this reporting period.			
1.		1.			
2.		2.			
3.		3.			
4.		4.			
Total Dollars Paid: \$		Total Dollars Unpaid: \$			

\*\*If more than one MBE subcontractor is used for this contract please use separate forms.

#### Return one (1) copy of this form to each of the following addresses:

MBE Officer, Telecom	Joanne Rusk	Janice Montague
301 West Preston Street	45 Calvert Street	MBE Liaison Officer
Room 1304	Room 436	Department of Budget and Management
Baltimore, MD 21201	Annapolis, MD 21401	Procurement Unit, Room 109
MBEOfficer@dbm.state.md.us	jrusk@dbm.state.md.us	45 Calvert Street
		Annapolis, MD 21401
		jmontague@dbm.state.md.us

Signature:\_\_\_\_\_ Date:\_\_\_\_\_

This form is to be completed monthly by the **MBE** contractor.

## **ATTACHMENT D-6 Maryland Department of Budget and Management** Minority Business Enterprise Participation Subcontractor Paid/Unpaid MBE Invoice Report

Month/Year		Contract #         Contracting Unit         Contract Amount         MBE Sub Contract Amt         Contract Begin Date         Contract End Date         Services Provided	
MBE Subcontractor Name:			
MDOT Certification #			
Contact Person			
Address:			
City		State:	ZIP:
	FAX:	X:	
Subcontractor Services Provided:			
List all payments received from Prime Contractor in the	List da	ates and amounts of any outs	tanding invoices.
preceding 30 days. 1.		1.	
2. 2.		2.	
3.	3.		
Total Dollars Paid: \$ 7		Total Dollars Unpaid: \$	
Prime Contractor Name:	Contact	Person:	

#### Return one (1) copy of this form to <u>each</u> of the following addresses:

MBE Officer, Telecom 301 West Preston Street Room 1304 Baltimore, MD 21201 <u>MBEOfficer@dbm.state.md.us</u>	Joanne Rusk 45 Calvert Street Room 436 Annapolis, MD 21401 jrusk@dbm.state.md.us	Janice Montague MBE Liaison Officer Department of Budget and Management Procurement Unit, Room 109 45 Calvert Street Annapolis, MD 21401 jmontague@dbm.state.md.us
--	--	--

Signature:\_\_\_\_\_ Date:\_\_\_\_\_

### ATTACHMENT E – PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE RESPONSE FORM

## Project No. 050R5800079 STATE OF MARYLAND LONG DISTANCE CALLING SERVICES

A Pre-Proposal Conference will be held at 2:00 PM, on October 14, 2004, in Auditorium at 300 West Preston Street, Baltimore, MD. Please return this form by October 12, 2004 advising whether or not you plan to attend.

#### For directions to the meeting site, you may contact Edward Bannat at 410-260-7662.

Return or fax this form to the Procurement Officer:

Mr. Edward Bannat Department of Budget and Management Procurement Unit 45 Calvert Street, Room 118 Annapolis, MD 21401 Fax # (410) 974-3274

Please indicate:

Yes, the following representatives will be in attendance:

1.

2.

3.

\_\_\_\_\_No, we will not be in attendance.

Signature

Title

## ATTACHMENT F – PRICE PROPOSAL FORM INSTRUCTIONS

# PRICING INSTRUCTION FORM

#### Instructions

In order to assist Offerors in the preparation of their price proposal and to comply with the requirements of this solicitation, Price Instructions and Price Forms have been prepared. Offerors shall submit their price proposal on the forms in accordance with the instructions on the forms and as specified herein. Do not alter the forms or the price proposal shall be rejected. The Price Form is to be signed and dated, where requested, by an individual who is authorized to bind the Offeror to all proposed prices.

Offerors are required to record the fully-loaded prices they are proposing for each listed item, and compute the total. The price forms are used to calculate the Offeror's TOTAL PRICE.

- All Unit/Extended Prices must be clearly typed or written in ink with <u>dollars and cents</u>, e.g.,
   \$24.15 and all percentages must be typed or written in ink with no more than one decimal place,
   e.g., 15.5 %.
- B) All Unit Prices must be the <u>actual</u> unit price the State shall pay for the proposed item per this RFP and may not be contingent on any other factor or condition in any manner. All surcharges and additional fees must be rolled into the unit prices proposed by each Offeror. Offeror bears the sole risk that such surcharges and additional fees may increase, and/or that new surcharges and additional fees may be levied by appropriate governmental or quasi-governmental authority during the term or any renewal term of the Contract. All percentages must be the actual percentage reduction that shall be applied to the manufacturer's price lists supplied.
- C) All calculations that result in a fraction of a cent must be rounded to the nearest whole cent, i.e., \$1.025 would be rounded to \$1.03 and \$1.024 would be rounded to \$1.02.
- D) All goods or services required or requested by the State and proposed by the vendor at No Cost to the State must be clearly entered in the Unit Price and Extended Price with \$0.00.
- E) All goods or services required or requested by the State and Not Offered by the vendor to the State must be clearly typed in the Unit Price and Extended Price with N/O.
- F) Except as instructed on the forms, nothing shall be entered on the forms that alters or proposes conditions or contingencies on the prices or percentages.
- G) The Offeror must record the specifications of equipment and/or services requested.
- H) Record the price per project line item in the price Column. Record the total of all the line item prices on the appropriate line for Sub-Total and Total Price.
- I) The Offeror shall comply with the following:
  - 1. Use the forms to price the items associated with this RFP. These prices shall include, except where indicated otherwise on the forms, all costs associated with the installation and operation of the VPN proposed.
  - 2. Propose all of the Price Proposal Forms.
- J) It is imperative that the prices included on the Price Proposal Forms have been entered correctly and calculated accurately by the vendor and that the respective total prices agree with the entries on the Price Proposal Forms. Any incorrect entries or inaccurate calculations by the vendor will be treated as provided in COMAR 21.05.03E and 21.05.02.12.

#### **Price Proposal Forms**

- A) Form F-1 Fixed One Time/Monthly Cost of Long Distance Services
- B) Form F-2 Intra-state Rates
- C) Form F-3 Inter-state Rates
- D) Form F-4 International Rates
- E) Form F-5 Calling Card Rates
- F) Form F-6 Teleconferencing Services
- G) Form F-7 Monthly Usage Price For Long Distance Calling and Calling Cards
- H) Form F-8 Monthly Usage Price For Teleconferencing Services
- I) Form F-9 Long Distance Calling Services Summary
- 1) Form F-1 is to reflect rates based on the following:
  - a) Table A enter into column C the fully loaded, one-time charge to install access circuits. In column D, the State estimates that there will be 3 installations of access circuits during the term of the Contract. Column E shall reflect the total of column C and D multiplied together.
  - b) Table B reflects the monthly costs for dedicated access. The State currently has approximately 44 dedicated circuits for long distance calling. In column C, enter the monthly cost for dedicated access per circuit in column D. Column E reflects the number of months for the base term of the Contract. Column F shall reflect the total of columns D, E and F multiplied together.
- 2) Forms F-2 through F-4 are to reflect the price per six-second intervals for each long distance call.
  - a) Table C is to reflect the Intra-state Day rates for 1) Dedicated to Dedicated (column C), 2) Dedicated to Switched (column D) and 3) Switched to Switched (column E).
  - b) Table D is to reflect the Intra-state Evening, Nights and Weekend rates for 1) Dedicated to Dedicated (column D), 2) Dedicated to Switched and 3) Switched to Switched (column E).
  - c) Table E is to reflect the Inter-state Day rates for 1) Dedicated to Dedicated (column C), 2) Dedicated to Switched (column D) and 3) Switched to Switched (column E).
  - d) Table F is to reflect the Inter-state Evening, Nights and Weekend rates for 1) Dedicated to Dedicated (column C), 2) Dedicated to Switched (column D) and 3) Switched to Switched (column E).
  - e) Table G is to reflect the International rates for Switched Origination in the USA for Peak and Offpeak hours. Also, Dedicated Origination in the USA for Peak and Off-peak hours.
- 3) Form F-5 is to reflect calling card pricing based on the following:
  - a) Table H enter into column C the price per call using a calling card.
  - b) Table I enter the price per six-second interval for each long distance call using a calling card for 1) Dedicated to Switched (column C) and 2) Switched to Switched (column D).
  - c) Table J enter into column C the fully loaded price for express ordering of calling cards. This fully loaded price shall include the cost for the express shipping and processing costs.
- 4) On Form F-6, the shaded areas identify whether a price based on a per six-second interval or a one time charge per call. Prices shall be entered in cells that are not shaded. Shaded cells shall remain blank. Enter into column C the price per six-second interval per connection or into column D the one time charge for the teleconferencing type listed.
- 5) F-7 reflects the monthly usage price for long distance calls and calling cards that have been priced out on the previous pricing sheets. Column B lists the long distance services. Column C contains the estimated number of monthly minutes. Enter into Column D the price per service based on prices entered the previous pricing sheets. Column E contains 10 for the number intervals, which equates to a one-minute interval. Column F shall reflect Column C, Column D and Column E multiplied together. The total of column F shall be multiplied by 36 (for the number of months in the base Contract) to reflected in the Total Contract Usage Price.

# Note: The number of minutes are estimates for evaluation purposes only. Actual amount of minutes used will be determined by Contract demands.

6) Form F-8 reflects the annual usage price for teleconferencing services that have been identified on Form F-6. Column B lists the teleconferencing services. Column C contains the estimated number of annual minutes or services. Enter into Column D the price per service based on prices entered on Form F-6. Column E contains 10 for the number intervals, which equates to a one-minute interval. Any services identified on Form F-6 as a one-time cost shall not be multiplied be 10 and those cells have been shaded on the pricing sheet. Column F shall reflect Column C, Column D and Column E multiplied together. The total of column F shall be multiplied by 3 (for the number of base years in the Contract) to reflect the Total Contract Usage Price.

# Note: The number of minutes are estimates for evaluation purposes only. Actual amount of minutes used will be determined by Contract demands.

7) Form F-9 – enter the totals from Table A, Table B, Table L and Table M into column D. The total of Column D is the Total Evaluated Contract Price.

### The actual Price Proposal Forms are located in a separate file. Reference Excel Spreadsheet.

## ATTACHMENT G - STATE IT SECURITY POLICY AND STANDARDS

## AVAILABLE IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT

See Department of Budget and Management Web Site

 $\label{eq:http://www.dbm.maryland.gov/portal/server.pt?space=Dir&spaceID=7&parentname=CommunityPage&parentid=0&in_hi_userid=1332&control=OpenSubFolder&subfolderID=3790&DirMode=1 \end{tabular}$ 

(Select IT Security Policy and Standards)

### ATTACHMENT H – BID BOND

#### **BID BOND**

BOND NO.\_\_\_\_

BID REQUEST NO.\_\_\_\_\_

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That we, \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ hereinafter called the Principal, as Principal, and of \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ a Corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ and authorized to do business in the State of Maryland, hereinafter called the Surety, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto, the State of Maryland, hereinafter called the Obligee, in the sum of One Hundred Thousand (\$100,000.00), good and lawful money of the United States of America, to be paid upon demand of the Obligee, for payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

#### THE CONDITION OF THE FOREGOING OBLIGATION IS SUCH THAT,

Whereas, the Principal has submitted to the Obligee a Bid for furnishing all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals thereto necessary for work generally described as

This Bid Bond shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland and any reference herein to Principal or Surety in the singular shall include all entities in the plural who or which are signatories under the Principal or Surety heading below.

NOW, THEREFORE, If the Obligee shall accept the Bid of the Principal and the Principal shall enter into a written agreement with the Obligee in accordance with the terms, conditions and price(s) set forth therein, and furnish such insurance and give such bond or bonds as may be specified in the Bidding or Contract Documents with good and sufficient surety for the faithful performance of such Agreement and for the prompt payment of labor and materials furnished in the prosecution thereof, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect; and the Surety shall, upon failure of the Principal to comply with any or all of the foregoing requirements immediately pay to the Obligee, upon demand, the amount hereof in good and lawful money of the United States of America, not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the Principal and Surety have caused these presents to be duly signed and sealed this \_\_\_\_\_ day of . 20

Principal

By	 (Seal)
2	· · ·

Official Title

Surety

By

Attorney-in-Fact

By

Maryland Agent

(Accompany this bond with Attorney-in-Fact's authority from Surety Company certified to include the date of the bond)

## **ATTACHMENT I – PERFORMANCE BOND**

#### PERFORMANCE BOND

Principal	Business Address of Principal
Surety	Obligee
a corporation of the State of	STATE OF MARYLAND By and through the following
and authorized to do business in the State of Maryland	Administration
Penal Sum of Bond Six Hundred Thousand (\$600,000)	
	Date of Contract
Description of Contract	
	Date Bond Executed
Contract Number:	

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That we, the Principal named above and Surety named above, are held and firmly bound unto the Obligee named above in the Penal Sum of this Performance Bond stated above, for the payment of which Penal Sum we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. However, where Surety is composed of corporations acting as co-sureties, we, the co-sureties, bind ourselves, our successors and assigns, in such Penal Sum jointly and severally as well as severally only for the purpose of allowing a joint action or actions against any or all of us, and for all other purposes each co-surety binds itself, jointly and severally with the Principal, for the payment of such sum as appears above its name below, but if no limit of liability is indicated, the limit of such liability shall be the full amount of the Penal Sum.

WHEREAS, Principal has entered into or will enter into a contract with the State of Maryland, by and through the Administration named above acting for the State of Maryland, which contract is described and dated as shown above, and incorporated herein by reference. The contract and all items incorporated into the contract, together with any and all changes, extensions of time, alterations, modifications, or additions to the contract or to the work to be performed thereunder or to the Plans, Specifications, and Special Provisions, or any of them or to any other items incorporated into the contract shall hereinafter be referred to as "the Contract."

WHEREAS, it is one of the conditions precedent to the final award of the Contract that these presents be executed.

NOW, THEREFORE, during the original term of said Contract, during any extension thereto that may be granted by the Administration, and during the guarantee and warranty period, if any, required under the Contract; unless otherwise stated therein, this Performance Bond shall remain in full force and effect unless and until the following terms and conditions are met:

- 1. Principal shall well and truly perform the Contract; and
- 2. Principal and Surety shall comply with the terms and conditions contained in this Performance Bond.

Whenever Principal shall be declared by the Administration to be in default under the Contract, the Surety may, within 15 days after notice of default from the Administration, notify the Administration of its election to either promptly proceed to remedy the default or promptly proceed to complete the contract in accordance with and subject to its terms and conditions. In the event the Surety does not elect to exercise either of the above stated options, then the Administration thereupon shall have the remaining contract work completed, Surety to remain liable hereunder for all expenses of completion up to but not exceeding the penal sum stated above.

The Surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no charge, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work to be performed thereunder or the Specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligations on this Performance Bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work or to the Specifications.

This Performance Bond shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland and any reference herein to Principal or Surety in the singular shall include all entities in the plural who or which are signatories under the Principal or Surety heading below.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Principal and Surety have set their hands and seals to this Performance Bond. If any individual is a signatory under the Principal heading below, then each such individual has signed below on his or her own behalf, has set forth below the name of the firm, if any, in whose name he or she is doing business, and has set forth below his or her title as a sole proprietor. If any partnership or joint venture is a signatory under the Principal heading below, then all members of each such partnership or joint venture have signed below, each member has set forth below the name of the partnership or joint venture, and each member has set forth below his or her title as a general partner, limited partner, or member of joint venture, whichever is applicable. If any corporation is a signatory under the Principal or Surety heading below, then each such corporation has caused the following: the corporation's name to be set forth below, a duly authorized representative of the corporation to affix below the corporation's seal and to attach hereto a notarized corporate resolution or power of attorney authorizing such action, and each such duly authorized representative to sign below and to set forth below his or her title as a representative of the corporation. If any individual acts as a witness to any signature below, then each such individual has signed below and has set forth below his or her title as a witness. All of the above has been done as of the Date of Bond shown above.

In Presence of:		Individual Principal	
Witnessas to			(SEAL)
In Presence of:	Co-Partn	ership Principal	
		(Name of Co-Partnership)	(SEAL)
as to	By:		(SEAL)
as to			(SEAL)
as to			(SEAL)
Corporate Principal			
Attest:		(Name of Corporation)	AFFIX
a Corporate Secretary	s to	By: OPresident	CORPORATE SEAL
		(Surety)	AFFIX
Attest:(SEAL)	By	r C	
Signature	Tit	tle:	~
Bonding Agent's Name:		(Business Address of Surety)	
Agent's Address		(Busiless reducess of Surety)	
	App	proved as to legal form and sufficiency	
	this	day of 20	
		Asst. Attorney General	

### ATTACHMENT J - CALLING CARD REQUEST/CANCELLATION FORM

## STATE OF MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF BUDGET & MANAGEMENT OFFICE OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY TELECOMMUNICATIONS DIVISION

## CALLING CARD REQUEST/CANCELLATION FORM

<b>SECTIO</b>	N I BILLING INFORMATION		
AGENCY	·		_
Division:			
Address:			
City:		_ State:	_ Zip Code:
	SECTION II – REQU	EST FOR ADDITIONAL CAL	LING CARDS
	User Name (First, Middle, Last)	Main Billing Telephone Number (Primary Account Number)	
A			
В			
C			

#### SECTION III - REQUEST TO CANCEL CALLING CARDS

	User Name	Calling Card Number	Reason for Cancellation
A			
В			
С			

## SECTION IV – CONTACT INFORMATION

Telecommunications Coordinator's Name:

Telecommunication Coordinator's Telephone Number:		-
. <u>.</u>		
Authorized Signature	Date	

Questions should be directed to Brenda Baldwin, Calling Card Administrator at 410-767-4673 or via e-mail at <u>baldwi@dbm.state.md.us</u>. This form can be faxed to 410-333-7285.

## ATTACHMENT K - CALLING CARD RECEIPT AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

# CALLING CARD RECEIPT AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I, the undersigned, acknowledge that I have requested and received a calling card for use with the STATE CALLING SERVICE (SCS) and will abide by the Telecommunications Policy for the use of calling cards. I understand that this calling card is to be <u>used for State business only</u> and I must safeguard the card and the account number information.

Name:	
Signature:	
Date Recd:	
Agency:	
Dept. or Office:	
Telecommunications Coordinator:	
This form is to be forwarded to: Department of Budget & Management Telecommunications Division Brenda Baldwin Calling Card Administrator Room 1304 301 West Preston Street Baltimore, Maryland 21201	
PI FASE RETURN FORM WITH ORIGINAL	SIGNATURE Upon the receipt of this

completed form, the PIN for the above calling card will be mailed.

Reference No.:

PIN Forwarded:

DBM/OIT 10/11/00